Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

DIRECTOR OF DEPARTMENT OF
)

PUBLIC SAFETY,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No. 10-1994 PO



)

BOBBY L. GARRETT,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION 


Bobby L. Garrett is subject to discipline because he committed criminal offenses involving moral turpitude while on active duty.
Procedure


The Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) filed a complaint on October 22, 2010, seeking this Commission’s determination that Garrett’s peace officer license is subject to discipline.  Garrett received a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing on February 18, 2011.  He did not file an answer to the complaint.  

On June 3, 2011, the Director filed a motion for summary decision (“the motion”).  We allowed Garrett until June 20, 2011, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  Pursuant to 1 CSR 15-3.446(6)(A), we may decide a motion for summary decision if a party establishes facts that entitle that party to a favorable decision and no party genuinely disputes such facts.  
Those facts may be established by stipulation, pleading of the adverse party, or other evidence admissible under the law.
  The motion relies on certified court records, which are admissible pursuant to §§ 536.070(10)
 and 490.130; and a notarized affidavit from the Peace Officer Standards & Training program.  The following facts, based on that evidence, are undisputed.

Findings of Fact

1. Garrett was a licensed peace officer at all relevant times.  
2. Garrett was assigned to the Crime Suppression Unit of the St. Louis Metropolitan Police Department (“SLMPD”) at all relevant times.

3. Garrett was responsible for enforcing the laws of the State of Missouri, making truthful reports, and conducting lawful searches.
4. From June 1, 2008, through approximately October 7, 2008, Garrett unlawfully conspired to commit wire fraud with his partner Vincent Carr and others.
5. On June 5, 2008, Carr obtained a search warrant for the first floor of 1475 Arlington Avenue, a residential building in the City of St. Louis (“1475 Arlington”).
6. On June 6, 2008, Garrett and Carr conducted surveillance at 1475 Arlington (“the police search”).  They saw C.C. leave the first floor residence, get in his car, and drive away.  Garrett and Carr followed C.C., pulled his vehicle over, and handcuffed and detained him.

7. C.C. owned 1475 Arlington, which he rented to tenants.  He said he had stored some equipment in the yard of 1475 Arlington, but did not live there.  He told officers that T.C. lived on the first floor of 1475 Arlington and that any illegal drugs located there belonged to T.C.  He also told them that J.S. lived on the second floor of 1475 Arlington and that J.S. sold illegal drugs.

8. Garrett and Carr drove C.C. back to 1475 Arlington.  They saw J.S. driving in the vicinity and pulled his vehicle over.  J.S. admitted that he had approximately seven ounces of crack cocaine, a firearm, and approximately $32,000 in his bedroom on the second floor of 1475 Arlington.  Garrett and Carr handcuffed and detained J.S. and placed him in their police vehicle.

9. Carr and Garrett drove C.C. and J.S. back to 1475 Arlington.  C.C. and J.S. were kept handcuffed and seated in the first floor residence.  Carr and other officers who were called to assist searched the first floor.  They found crack cocaine, powder cocaine, marijuana, and several firearms.

10. Garrett, with Carr’s knowledge, also searched the second floor of 1475 Arlington where he recovered approximately seven ounces of crack cocaine, a loaded Stallard Arms, Model JS, 9mm pistol, and approximately $32,000.  He then falsely reported that he recovered the crack cocaine, pistol, and $3,710 from a couch on the first floor.
11. Garrett, with Carr’s knowledge, kept the remainder of the money that was recovered from the second floor of 1475 Arlington without reporting it to the SLMPD.
12. Garrett and Carr booked C.C. for possession of all the illegal drugs recovered from the first floor of 1475 Arlington, as well as the crack cocaine that was recovered from the second floor. 
13. Garrett and Carr prepared a police report that failed to include the facts regarding J.S. or the second floor of 1475 Arlington.

14. Garrett and Carr knowingly caused arrest and booking information regarding C.C. to be transmitted in interstate commerce over and through the internet from the SLMPD in the City of St. Louis, Missouri, and ultimately to the National Crime Information Center at the Criminal Justice Information Services Division of the Federal Bureau of Investigation (“FBI”) in Clarksburg, West Virginia.
15. Carr, in conspiracy with Garrett, prepared and filed with the circuit court clerk a “return and inventory form” relative to the search warrant, falsely stating that the crack cocaine, Stallard Arms pistol, and $3,710 were recovered from the first floor of 1475 Arlington.
16. Carr, in conspiracy with Garrett, submitted all of the drugs recovered on June 6, 2008, to the SLMPD Laboratory Division for testing under the name of C.C., with no mention of J.S.

17. Carr failed to advise the circuit attorney’s office that J.S. had admitted to possession of the crack cocaine, pistol, and approximately $32,000.  In conspiracy with Garrett, Carr subsequently requested that the circuit attorney’s office not issue criminal charges against C.C. relative to his June 6, 2008, arrest.

18. On September 17, 2008, during a meeting with special agents of the FBI, Garrett and Carr knowingly and willfully made several false material statements and representations regarding the police search.  
19. On September 17, 2008, Garrett and Carr failed to advise special agents of the FBI that Garrett detained a suspect in relation to the police search who had admitted to possessing crack cocaine, a pistol, and United States currency.
20. On August 28, 2009, Garrett pled guilty in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri to theft of government funds, in violation of 18 USC §§ 641 and 2; conspiracy to commit wire fraud in violation of 18 USC §§ 1343 and 1346 and 18 USC § 2; wire fraud in violation of 18 USC §§ 1343 and 1346 and 18 USC § 2; two counts of making a false statement in violation of 18 USC § 1001(a)(2) and § 2;  and misapplication of property under the care, custody and control of a state government agency that receives federal funds in violation of 18 USC § 666(a)(1)(A) and § 2.  

21. On November 10, 2009, Garrett was sentenced to 28 months’ imprisonment in the custody of the United States Bureau of Prisons.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear this case.
  The Director has the burden of proving that Garrett has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080(2) and (3):

1.  The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:
*   *   *
(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed;
(3) Has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person[.]

Garrett pled guilty to theft of government funds, conspiracy to commit wire fraud, wire fraud, two counts of making a false statement, and misapplication of property under the care, custody and control of a state government agency that receives federal funds.  He is estopped from denying that he committed those offenses,
 and he made no attempt to do so.  There is cause to discipline his license under § 590.080.1(2). 


Section 590.080.1(3) allows discipline when a peace officer has committed any act while on active duty or under color of law that involves moral turpitude or a reckless disregard for the safety of the public or any person.  In Brehe v. Missouri Dep't of Elementary and Secondary Education,
 which involved discipline of a teacher's certificate under § 168.071 for committing a 
crime involving moral turpitude, the court stated that certain crimes, such as those involving fraud, necessarily involve moral turpitude.

The crimes that Garrett committed are crimes that involve moral turpitude.
  Garrett committed these crimes while on active duty at the SLMPD.  He breached the trust of the citizens of St. Louis and unlawfully deprived them of their right to his honest services.  He is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(3).
Summary


Garrett is subject to discipline under § 590.080.1(2) and (3).

SO ORDERED on June 29, 2011.


________________________________



KAREN A. WINN


Commissioner
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